
 

C:\USERS\KBERGSCHULTZ\DOCUMENTS\OPERATION FILES\2022\GFL\ZION\ZLF CQAP AIR TEST REVISION FINAL 070622.DOCX 

 
555 South 8th Street    •    Sheboygan, Wisconsin 53081    •    844.263.1618    •    wcgrp.com    •    Offices Nationwide 

July 6, 2022 
 
Mr. Kenneth Smith, PE 
Manager, Solid Waste Branch 
Bureau of Land 
Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 
 
Re: Proposed CQA Plan Revision – Pipe Pressure Testing  
 IEPA Site No. 0978020002 – Lake County 
 Zion Landfill, Inc. 
 Permit No. 1995-343-LFM 
 Permit Landfill 811 File 

Dear Mr. Smith: 

On behalf of Zion Landfill, Inc., Weaver Consultants Group (WCG) is submitting the following 
proposed CQA plan revision for pipe pressure testing in response to the draft permit denial dated 
May 6, 2022, regarding the Construction Acceptance Report (CAR) for the 2020-2021 GCCS 
Improvements. 

IEPA stated in the draft denial “In the addendum received by the Illinois EPA dated April 28, 
2022, the applicant indicated that they did not implement the approved Construction Quality 
Assurance Plan when pressure testing the supply lines.  The facility is required to abide by the 
approved Construction Quality Assurance Plan pursuant 35IAC, 811.501.  If the applicant deems 
it necessary to deviate from the approved CQA Plan, the applicant must submit to the Agency a 
proposal to revise the CQA Plan. The proposal shall include detailed technical documentation 
that the revision will still meet regulatory and industry standards.” 
 
The deviation noted in the CAR is related to the air pressure testing of the HDPE SDR-11 air 
supply lines for the GCCS.  Per Subsection Placement Requirements under Section 15.2 
Installation of the current approved CQA Plan requires these nonperforated pipelines to be 
tested at 150 psi for a 1-hour test period. Documented pressure testing of these lines was 
completed at lesser pressures. 
 

• Zion Landfill is requesting a revision to the CQA Plan to modify air pressure testing 
requirements of air supply lines for the GCCS system to a minimum 120 psi for a test 
period of 1-hour.  The purpose of air testing pipe is to identify leaks within the air piping 
system at typical operating system pressures.  Operating system pressures for the Zion 
Landfill air supply system typically range from 110 to 120 psi.  Testing piping at the 
proposed 120 psi as opposed to 150 psi will therefore not impact the ability to identify 
leaks within the air piping system at typical system operating pressures.  
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• This modification is further supported based on safety concerns as pressure testing of 
any installed pipe is inherently dangerous.  Testing at this lower pressure reduces the 
potential for accidents or injuries while still meeting the purpose of the test. 
 

• In addition, best practices during pressure testing are to assure safety and prevent 
damage to system components. The maximum test pressure should not exceed the 
lowest pressure rated component in the system being tested. For the GCCS air lines the 
lowest rated component would be the operating ball valves.  Attached is a typical 
operating ball valve for gas installed in the air supply line.  Published operating pressure 
of the valve is 125 psi.   
 

The requested revision to the CQA Plan modifying the air pressure testing of air supply lines for 
the GCCS system to a minimum 120 psi for a test period of 1-hour meets the purpose of the test, 
promotes safety during installation and testing, allows for GCCS operation within manufacture 
pressure limits for system components, and continues to maintain environmental protection. 
Therefore, this proposed reduction in test pressure meets regulatory and industry standards. 
 
Please feel free to contact me at (844) 263-1618 if you have any questions or comments related 
to the proposed CQA Plan modification. 

 
Sincerely, 

Weaver Consultants Group 
 

 
Kenneth J. Bergschultz, PE 
Project Director 

Cc: Mr. Mark Bingham, Zion Landfill 
 Mr. Randy Frank, GFL Environmental 
 Mr. Ken Mika, Tetra Tech 

Attachments: - CQA Plan Section 15.2 
  - Typical operating valve specification 
 

 



ATTACHMENT 1 

CQA PLAN SECTION 15.2 
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ATTACHMENT 3 

TYPICAL OPERATING VALVE SPECIFICATION 
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